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J. V. VASANI & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent auditor’s review report on interim financial statements

Report on the Audit of the Interim Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements '

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying interim condensed standalone
financial statements of GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE
LIMITED) (“the Company”), which comprise the Condensed Balance Sheet
as at September 30, 2021, the Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Condensed Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the
three months period ended on that date, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter

referred to as “the interim condensed standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid interim condensed standalone
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting (“Ind AS 349
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at September 30, 2021, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the three

months period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the interim condensed standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified

under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thogé
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Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the interim condensed
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have {ulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the interim

condensed standalone financial statements.

Management Responsibilities for the Interim Condensed Standalone

Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these interim condensed standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS 34 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the interim condensed standalone financial statements that

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.




In preparing the interim condensed standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and wusing the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Interim Condensed

Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
interim condensed standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these interim condensed standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the interim
condensed standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material




from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a -going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the interim condensed standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the interim
condensed standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the interim condensed standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the interim condensed

standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the interim condensed standalone financial statements may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the res




of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
interim condensed standalone financial statements.
We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

J.V.VASANI & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No 114283W

Jignesh V Vasani
Partner
Membership No. 047954
UDIN: 22047954AFMQNM9717

Place: VAPI
Date: 24.03.2022




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Balance Sheet
{ % in million)
" As at 30th September, As at As at
Phstiounr P B 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 702.17 587.82 469,61
(b) Investment Property 6 - 174.70 177.00
(c) Other Intangible assets 7 1.52 1.27 -
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ili} Others 8 17.90 15.98 13.41
(e) Other non-current assets 9 8.41 10.57 3.88
Total non-current assets 729.99 790.34 663.90
{2) Current Assets
{a) Inventaries 10 545.34 405.12 328.85
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 1,353.51 1,679.41 1,479.06
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 1.09 8.93 13.48
(1ii) Cther bank balances 13 41.89 40.05 58.71
(iv) Loans 14 267 2.56 6.27
{v) Dthers 15 13.60 11.30 10.80
(¢} Current Tax Assets (Net) 16 32.08 - 12.14
(d) Other current assets 17 25193 207.08 92.21
Total current assets 2,242.10 2,354.46 2,001.53
Assets classified as held for sale 18 173.55 = -
Total assets 3,145.65 3,144.79 2,665.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 19 201.55 40.31 26.39
(b} Other Equity 20 1,370.39 1,381.29 509.49
(d) Mon-contrelling interests
Total equity 1,571.93 1,421.60 935.88
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 393.46 37794 34027
(i) Trade payables 22 3.48 7.54 7.32
(b) Provisions 23 2.99 0.23 0.32
(c | Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 24 49,25 3521 28.89
Total non-current liabilities 449.18 420.92 376.80
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 532.15 393.47 354.17
(il) Trade payables 26
(A} due to micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(B) due to other than micro 549.07 879,41 891.75
enterprises and small enterprises
(iii} Other financial liabllities 27 16.88 894 81.67
(b) Other current liabilities 28 24.80 16.41 14.29
(c) Provisions 29 1.63 1.27 0.87
(d} Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 30 E ZAF -
Total current liabilities 1,124.53 1,302.28 1,352.75
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,145.65 3,144.79 2,665.43
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to| 1-57
Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For J. V. Vasani & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
RN NO : 114283W ‘\PSAM&'
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Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

= Oy

Shailesh Desai Umang Desal
ner Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.: DIN: 00266938 DIN: 05161181
Place: Vapi

Place: Vapi Place: Vapi
Date: 24-03-2022 .

UDIN : 22047954AFMQNM9717

Membership No: 50568
Place: Vapi Place: Vapi
Date : 24-03-2022 Date: 24-03-2022




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Statement of Profit & Loss

(X in million)
5 Note | For the Period ended 30th For the year ended
Particulars
No. September, 2021 31st March, 2021
I |Revenue from operations 31 1,818.49 3,796.06
Il {Other income 32 13.69 8.26
Il |Total income (1+11) 1,832.18 3,804.32
IV |EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 33 1,296.39 2,233.19
Purchase of Stock in trade 34 84,17 555.64
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, Stock- in- trade and| 35 (66.85) (14.09)
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 36 57.48 70.88
Finance costs 37 35.41 77.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 38 17.98 30.88
Other expenses 39 189.60 307.62
Total expenses (1V) 1,614.17 3,261.49
V [Profit before tax (IlI-IV) 218.00 542.82
VI |Tax expense: 40
(a) Current tax 55.18 135.34
(b) Deferred tax 14.75 6.52
Vil | Profit for the Year from Continuing Operations (V-VI) 148.07 400.96
VIl | Profit from discontinued operations 5.87 -
IX |Tax expense of discontinued operations 1.48 5
X |Profit from Discontinued operations (after tax)(ViII-IX) 439 -
Xl |Profit for the period (VII+X) 152.46 400.96
XIl |Other comprehensive income 41
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.85) (0.81)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be 0.72 0.20
reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified ta profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
Xlll | Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (X1+Xl) 150.33 400.35
XIV [Earnings per equity share 42
Basic 7.56 21,11
Diluted 7.57 19,90
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial| 1-57
Statements

For J. V. Vasani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Membership No.:
Place: Vapi
Date: 24-03-2022

UDIN : 22047954AFMQNM9717

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

R
Shailesh Desai
Managing Director
DIN: 00266938

Place: Vapi
Date ; 24-03-2022

W,

\

i

/4
Umang Desai
Whole Time Director
DIN: 05161181
Place: Vapi
Date : 24-03-2022
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Statement of Cash Flows

( X in million)
L For the Period ended For the year ended
Particulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
[A] [CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax from continuing operations 218.00 542.82
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Profit from discontinued operations 5.87
Non-Cash Items 23.82 31.84
Non Operating ltems 21.84 73.57
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan (2.85) (0.81)
Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes in Working Capital 266.69 647.42
Working capital adjustments:
(increase)/ Decrease in Non Current / Current Assets:
Inventories (140.22) (76.27)
Trade receivables 325.90 (200.35)
Other financials assets (4.51) 1.03
Other non financial assets (44.85) (114.87)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current / Current Liabilities:
Trade Payables (334.40) (12.11)
Other Financial Liabilities 7.93 (31.10)
Other Non Financial Liabilities & Provisions 11.51 2.42
88.06 216.17
Cash Flow from operations after changes in Working Capital
Income tax (paid)/ Refund (91.50) (120.44)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) (3.44) 95.73
[B] |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) (135.11) (156.45)
Sale/Adjustment of Property, plant and equipment 12.82 0.74
Purchase of Mutual Funds = -
Sale of Mutual Funds - -
Dividend Income B -
Interest received (finance income) 0.92 3.77
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Eguivalents (1.83) 18.66
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (123.20) (133.28)
[C] |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Impact due to business combination - 85.37
Proceeds / (Repayment) from borrowing (net) 154.20 76.97
Interest & financial charges (35.41) (129.34)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C) 118.80 33.00
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7.84) (4.56)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.93 13.48
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 1.09 8.93




Notes:

1 [Cash & Bank Balances consists of the following:
Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. Balances with Banks ] 0.80 7.94
b. Cash on hand 0.28 0.99
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 1.09 8.93
2 |The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) - 7 “Statement of
Cash Flows”

As per our report of even date attached

For J. V. Vasani & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Gujarat

Chartered Accountants Polysol Chemicals Limited
FRN NO,: 114283W

Shailesh Desai Umang Desai
Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 04 DIN: 00266938 DIN: 05161181
Place: Vapi Place: Vapi Place: Vapi
Date: 24-03-2022 Date : 24-03<2022 Date : 24-03-2022

UDIN : 22047954AFMQNM9717

Dipak Sanghani

CFO & Company secretary
fembership No: 50568
ace: Vapi




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) {CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC0O12892)
Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

1

21

2.2

23

231

2.4

Corporate Information

Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited is a Large enterprise and located in notified industrial estate, GIDC Vapi, District Valsad, Gujarat, INDIA having total plat area is 9696
sq. mt. doing manufacturing activity of agro chemicals, construction chemicals & leather chemicals etc., & two ather manufacturing units at Sarigam, District Valsad,
Gujarat & Dadra, Union Territories of Daman and Diu & Dadra Nagar Haveli.

{a) statement of compliance
These financial statements are financial statements of the Company. The Company has prepared financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2021 in

accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). Ind AS is applicable to the

Company from April 1, 2020 and accordingly financials of the Company is prepared as per Ind AS.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act to be
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, The Company’s
Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2021 comprises of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Notes to Financial Statements,

Upto the year ended on March 31, 2021, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014. These are the Company’s first Ind-AS adopted financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is Mpril 1, 2020,
Functional and presentation currency

The Company's functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR) and the financial statements are presented in INR and all values are presented in million (INR 000,000}, except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement
The financial information has been prepared on the histarical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets (except trade receivables and contract assets which are measured at transaction cost) and liabilities (including|Fair value
derivative)

|Defined benefits liability Present value of defined

Summary of significant accounting policies
A summary of the significant accounting palicies applied in the preparation of the financial Information are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the Financial information,

Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and fiabilities in the statement of assets and liabilities based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or Intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve monthsafter the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred Lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
maonths as its operating cycle.

Business combination

Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, prescribes significantly different accounting for business combinations which are not under .common control and those under
comman control.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.

The paoling of interest method Is considered to involve the following:

(a) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,

(b) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonies accounting policies.

(c) The financial information in respect of priar periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding pericd in the
Financial Information, irrespective of the actual date of the business combination,

(d) The identity of the reserves has been preserved and appear in the financial information of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial
infarmation of the transferor.

(e} The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acguired entity is transferred to capital reserve.
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Significant Accouting Policies

Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to
be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts, The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative catch up
transition method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively
only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — .e. the
comparative information continues to be reparted under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11, The adoption of this Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on the averall revenus and/ar
opening balance of retained earnings.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties and is adjusted
for variable considerations. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in the contract on the same basis as at
contract inception. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur. The Company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently,
amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.
Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope ar contract price.

Sale of Goods & Services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive
In exchange for those goods or services.

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and anytaxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as goods and services tax, etc. For certain contracts that permits the customer to return an item, revenue Is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount ofcumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to customer.

Costs that relate directly to a contract and incurred in Securing a contract are recognized as an asset and amartized over the contract term as reduction in revenue.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-5tep Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: |dentify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Contracts are subject to madification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Company reviews madification to contract in conjunction
with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, ortransaction price of an existing obligation could
undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a c I djust Is acc d for.

Sale of services
Revenue with respect to sale of services is recognized when the services are rendered, and no significant uncertainty exists regarding thecollection of consideration.

Export incentives
Government incentives are accrued for based on fulfilment of eligibility criteria for availing the incentives and when there is no uncertainty inreceiving the same.

Other Income

Other income comprises interest income on deposits, gain/ (losses) on disposal of financial assets and non-financial assets. It is recognised on accrual basis except where
the receipt of income is uncertain,

Interest Income: Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimatedfuture
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to:

* The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

* The amortised cost of the financial liability.

Dividend Income: Dividend income is accounted when the right to receive the dividend is established, Dividend income is included under the head “Other income”in the
statement of profit and loss account.

Rental income: Rental incorne arising from operating leases or on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other non-operating income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Insurance Claims: Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned authority.

Contract Balances

* Contract assets: A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
Bo0ds or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset isrecognized for the earned consideration that |5
conditional.

* Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Comapny's right to an amount of consideration that is uncanditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

® Contract liabllities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due [whichever is earlier). Contract labilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

Right of Return

The Company provides a customer with a right to return in case of any defects or on grounds of quality. The Company uses the expectad value method to estimate the
goods that will not be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind
A5 115 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 from April 01, 2020 using the medified retrospective approach by applying Ind A5 115 to all the contracts that are not compieted
on April 01, 2020. The application of ind AS 115 did not have any material impact on recognition and measurement principles. However, it results in additional
presentation and disclosure requirements for the Company. The Company has followed the same accounting policy cheices (both mandatory exceptions and optional
exemptions availed as per Ind AS 101) as initially adopted on transition date i.e. April 01, 2020 while preparing Financial Information for the years ended March 31, 2021
and April 1, 2020.

The Company has also applied the practical expedient under Ind AS 115 for incremental cost of obtaining 2 contract and has recognized such cost as an expense when
incurred if the amortization period of the asset is one year or less.
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Property, plant and equipment

gnition and ement:
Post transition to Ind AS, property, plant and equipment, excluding Freehold land are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of property, plant and equipment comprises Its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import dutiesand other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its boak value only if it increases the future benefits from its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other expenses an existing property, plant and equipment,including day-to-day repair andmaintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current
assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assat (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the Financial Statements on disposal ar when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired
from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net baok value and net realizable value. Any gain or losses arising disposal of praperty,
plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on all property, plant & equipment are provided for, from the date of put to use for commercial production on straight line method at the useful lives
prescribed in Schedule-ll to the Companies Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change Is ace d for on prospective
basis,
Asset Description Assets Useful life (in Years)
Factory Buliding 30
Electrical Installation 10
Laboratory Equipment 10
Office Equipment 15
Computers 3
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicle 8
PFlant and Machinery 20
Residential Building 60
Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has valued intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS 38 - Intangible Assets.

Post transition to Ind AS, intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortized aver their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, fram the date that they are available for
use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset s based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
ecanomic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end

Intangibles assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the date they are avallable for use.

Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future ecanomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in Statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised

Impairment of Non-Finandial Assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in- use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value
of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have baen
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment lass been recognized for the asset in prior years,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises purchase price, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventaries to their present location and condition, In determining the cost, weighted average cost is used. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to sell. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

The method of determination of cost Is as fallows:

= Raw materials and components—on a weighted average basis
* Stores and spares — on a weighted average basis

* Work-in-progress — includes cost of conversion.

* Finished goods—includes cost of conversion.

The net realizable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the net realizable value of related finished goods. Raw materials and other supplies held far
use in production of inventories are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished
products will exceed their net realizable value. Fixed production overheads are allocated an al capacity of production facilities. The provision for
inventory obsolescence is assessed periodically and is provided as considered necessary.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized when the Company
becomes 3 party to contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets.

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial instrument is classified and measured at

* Amortised cost

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt instruments;

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) - equity investments; or

* Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not classified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business madel for managing financial
assets,

A financlal asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

+ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

* The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on a specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts
outstanding.

A debt Investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assets; and

* The contractual terms of the financial sssets give rise on a specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts
outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in OCI (designated as FVOCI- equity investment). This election is made on an investment-to-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at FYTPL On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mistake that would otherwise arise.

Finandial assets: Subseqg and gains and losses

Financial assets, at FVTPL:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income are recognized in profit or lass.

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVTOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest Income under effective interest methed, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity investments at FVTOCI:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are racognized in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected cradit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 50 details how the Company determines whether there has been 3 significant increase in
credit risk.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows
‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on financial assets, trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
For recognition of impairment foss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase In credit risk since
initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

iii) Derecognition of financial

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

= The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset or

* Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from financial asset but assumed a cantractual obligaticn to pay the cash flows to une or more recipients.
Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains contral of the financial asset, the asset s continued to be
recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial Liability

i} Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost. All financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

ii) Sub




The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: s

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabllities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separate embedded derivatives are also ciassified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For [iabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

3.6.3 Amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate ("EIR*) method. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amartization process. Amortised cost is calculaled by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the FIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

3.6.4 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified party fails to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

3.6.5 Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liakility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liabllity and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of prafit or
loss.

3.6.6 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and sattle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.6.7 Reclassification of fi ial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets.

3.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, other shart-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to  known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant  risk of changes in  value, and bank  overdrafts.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered
an integral part of the Comapny's cash manag it

3.8 Foreign C v Tr i and Ti I
Foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monstary assets
and liabilities are translated into relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the transiation of maonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognized in statement of profit and loss. Non-manetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency and measured at fair value are transiated
a8t the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-manetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss and are generally recognized In statement of profit and loss, except exchange differences arising from the
translation of the following items which are recognized in OCI:
* equity investments at fair value through OCI (FVOCI)
= a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the extent that the hedge is effective; and
* qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

3.9 Employee benefits
3.9.1 Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benafit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any
further amounts. The Company makes specified manthly contributions towards employee Provident Fund to Government administerad Provident Fund Scheme which is
& defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

Defined Benefit plans

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of gratuity obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial
valuations carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash
flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at
the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return en plan assets above or below the discount
rate is recognized as part of remeasurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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The Company's gratuity scheme is administered through a third party trust and the provision for the same is determined an the basis of actuarial valuation carried out
by an independent actuary. Provision is made for the shortfall, if any, between the amounts required to be contributed to meet the accrued liability for gratuity as
determined by actuarial valuation and the available corpus of the funds,

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short term employee benefits, which include benefits like
salaries, wages and performance incentives and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the refated service.

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability Is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid e.g. short term performance incentive, if the Carnpany has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services
provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain')
or the gain or loss on curtallment is recognized Immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settfement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs,

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised at an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance sheet date. In respect of compensated absences
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services, liability for short-term employee benefits is
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Other long-term emplayee benefits

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences constitute other long-term emplayee benefits, recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for
the period in which the employee has rendered services. The obligation recognized in respect of these long-term benefits is measured at present value of the obligation
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit method. Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost, interest cost and gains or losses
on curtailments and settlements, re-measurements including actuarial gains and losses are recagnized in the statement of profit and loss as employee benefit expenses.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to intarest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets pertaining to the period
from commencement of activities directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of upto the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to tha
cost of the assets. Qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use Borrowing cost alsa includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.. All other borrowing casts are expensed in the period in which they occur,

Leases

The Company has applied ind AS 116 using the full retrospective approach, hence, the comparative information has been restated.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, that s if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assat
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.11.1 Company as a lessee

3.12

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as 3 lease separately from non-lease companents of the contract and allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease camponent and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease lizbility at the lease commencement date. The ROU asset is Initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the |ease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the sharter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the axercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

The ROU asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expenses (unless they are (ncurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment accurs.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date. The lease
payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Further, leases for which the underlying asset is of low value has been recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent It relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax items are recognized in relation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes current tax payable where appropriate. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offsetand intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in

the financial statements except for the cases mentioned below.
Deferred income tax assets and lizbilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are

expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settied. Deferred tax is recognized in statement

of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to it jzed outside profit or loss, in which case is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equity). P,Nl & c
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Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity,

The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that Includes the enactment or
substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax is not recognized for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that Is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 2gainst which they can be used. The Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which such deferred tax can be realised. Deferred tax assels, unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/reduced to the extent that it is prabable/ne longer prabable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities {on a year on year basis) and deferred tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right and
where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 3 past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due ta the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

(ii) Onerous contract

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present
obligation as a result of an abligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

{iii}) Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present cbligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When
there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. These are reviewed at each
financial reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

(iv) Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used In computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at 3 later date. In computing diluted
earnings per share, only potential equity shares that is dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Company has identified
one repartable segment based on the dominant source, nature of risks and return and the internal organisation and management structure and for which discrete
financial information is available. The CODM monitors the operating results of the entity as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessmant.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wheraby net profit before taxes for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operaling cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Fair value measurement

The Campany measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability, the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic banefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the tircumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial Information are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial Information on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the mavements in the values of assets
and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset ar
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. Above Is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other faj d disclosures are
given in the relevant notes,
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Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, Investment Froperties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 requirements for cost model. Free hold Land and Properties
under construction are not depreciated.

Building companent of investment property is depreciated over 30 years from the date of ariginal construction, based on the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 using the straight-line method. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and refisct fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future econamic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included In profit or loss in the periad in which the property is derecognized.

Critical Judgments and Estimates
Allowances for uncollected trade receivahles
Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on

ageing of the receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be collectible.

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent fiabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements

have concluded based on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such abligations are treated as contingent
liabilitles and disclosed in nates Although there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company Is Invoived. It is not expected that

such contingencies will have material effect an its financial position of probability.

Impairment of other financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumnptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value In use, The fair valueless costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, forsimilar assets

or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is basad on a Discounted Cash Flow ['DCF') model.

Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves maki g various ptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its lang-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to ch in these ptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date,

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. At the end of the current
reporting period, the management determined that the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at which they are currently being depreciated
represent the correct estimate of the lives and need no change.

Leases - Estimating the incr | borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR’) to measure leasa lizbilities. The BR
is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the rightof-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably
Certain to be exercised, ar any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if It is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain

whether or not to exercise the option to renew or tarminate the lease. That is, It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either
the renewal or termination, After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e-g., construction ofsignificant leasehold impravements or

significant customization to the leased asset).
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GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Information

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Gross Block { % in million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 181.68 181.68
Additions/deductions - -
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2021 181.68 181.68
Additions/deductions (181.68) (181.68)
Closing balance as at 30 September, 2021 - -
Depreciation and impairment ( % in million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 4.68 4.68
Charge for the year 2.30 2.30
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2021 6.98 6.98
Charge for the year 1.15 1.15
deductions (8.13) (8.13)
Closing balance as at 30 September, 2021 - -
Net Block [ X in million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 177.00 177.00
As at 31 March, 2021 174.70 174.70

As at 30th September, 2021

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment Properties recognized as of the transition

date measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition data.

Information regarding income and liture of Investment property {X in Million)
Particulars Far the year ended
31st March, 2021
Rental Income 12.99
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that generate rental income 0.34
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that did not generate rental income .
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 12.66
Less: Depreciation 2.30
Profit from Investment Properties 10.36
Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2020
Rental Income 12.38
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that generate rental income 0.32
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that did not generate rental income -
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 12.06
Less: Depreciation 230
Profit from Investment Properties 9.76
Particulars For the year ended
315t March, 2019
Rental Income 8.22
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that generate rental income 0.34
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that did not generate rental income -
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 7.88
Less: Depreciation 2.30
Profit from Investment Properties 5.58

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractusl obligations to purchase,

construct or develop investment properties.

The Company's Investment Properties consists of land. The Fair value of land was determined using the market comparable
approach based on recent market prices without any significant adjustments being made to the markst observabile data. The
Fair value measurements is categorized In level 2 or lavel 3 of Fair value hierarchy as appropriate.

Leasing Arrangements

Certain Investment Properties are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with monthly rent receipts. Minimum

lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties are as fallows:

2 in Million
Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2021
Within one year 13.61
Later than one year but less than five years -
Later than five years -
Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2020
Within one year 12.99
Later than one year but less than five years 13.61

Later than five years




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Information

7

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
( X in million)

Particulars /Assets Computer Software ] Total
GROSS BLOCK
As at 1st April, 2020 - -
Additions 1.33 1.33
Reclassification to assets held for sale - -
Deduction/Adjustments - -
As at 31st March, 2021 1.33 1.33
Additions 0.36 0.36
Reclassification to assets held for sale -
Deduction/Adjustments -
As at 30th September, 2021 1.70 1.70
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As at 1st April, 2020 - -
Charge for the year 0.07 0.07
Deduction/Adjustments -
As at 31st March, 2021 0.07 0.07
Charge for the year 0.11 0.11
Deduction/Adjustments -
As at 30th September, 2021 0.18 0.18
Net Block
As at 1st April, 2020 - -
As at 31st March, 2021 1.27 127
As at 30th September, 2021 1.52 1.52

1. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible assets recognised as of
transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on
the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

2. The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLCO12892)
Notes to Financial Information

7

10

11

Investments (X In millien)
As at As at As at
Particulars 30th September, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Ungquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments
5.8.P.P. Co-op. Bank Ltd.
81 Equity Shares of X 25/- each 0.002 0.002 0.002
Total 0.002 0.002 0.002
Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 0.002 0.002 0.002
|Ageregate market value of quoted investments
Financial Assets - Others (% in million}
) As at As at As at
Particulars 30th September, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 |  1st April, 2020
Security Deposits 17.90 15.98 13.41
Total 17.90 15.98 13.41
Other Non Current Assets (% in million)
As at As at As at
Particulars 30th September, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 |  1st Apri, 2020
{Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
Capital advances B.40 10.56 3.87
Balance with government authorities 0.01 0.01 0.01
Total B.41 10.57 1.88
Inventories (% in million)
As at As at As at
Partiouises 30th September, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 |  1st April, 2020
Raw Material 340.59 262,17 198.74
Work in Progress 192.01 109.62 74.08
Finished goods 5.92 21.46 45,34
Packing Material 6.81 11.87 10.69
Total 545.34 405.12 328.85

1. For details of inventories given as security against borrowings, (Refer Note 3.5 of Annexure V).
2. Write down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to % nil/- {31 March 2021 %nil, 31 March 2020 Znil, March 31, 2019 Znil).
These were recognised as an expense during the year and included in consumption of stores and spare parts in statement of profit and loss.

3. Reversal of write-down of inventories value amounted to T nil{31 March 2021 %nil, 31 March, 2020 %nil, 31 March, 2019 %nil). These
were recognised as a reduction of expense during the year and included in consumption of stores and Spare parts in statement of profit and

loss,

4. During the previous year reversal of write-down of inventories have been made on account of consumption of inventory in normal

course of business.

Trade Receivables % in million)
Asat As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

30th September, 2021

Unsecured, Considered good
Cue from related Parties*®
Others- Due within 6 months

Undisputed 1,264.56 1,561.45 1,438 36
Disputed 6.58
Due for more than & months B8.94 117.96 341
Significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired
Less:
Impairment for doubtful receivables
Total 1,353.51 1,679.41 1,479.06
* Trade receivables includes:
Particulars Asat As at As at
30th September, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

Due by firm in which Directors are Partners

Due by Private Companies in which Directors are Directors

0.01

19.50

Generally, the Company erters into long-term sales arrangement with its customers. The credit period on sales is generally 30 to 60 days.
Interestis charged at agreed rate as per contract terms on the overdue balance.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment;

Particulars As at 30th September, | As at 31st March,
2021 2021

less than 6 months 1,264.56 1,561.45
6 months to 1 year 13.07 74.94
1to 2 years 50,56 15.52
2to 3 years 6.37 9,29
Maore than 3 years 18.95 18.21
Total 1,353.51 1,679.41
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Cash and Cash Equivalents (% in million)
Asat As at As at
i :
Particulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Balances with banks in
current accounts 0.28 7.94 12.55
Cash on hand 0.80 0.99 0.93
Total 1.09 8.93 13.48
Other Bank balances (% in million)
Aiut As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

30th September, 2021

Other Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 menths upto 12
months (refer note 16.1)
Unclaimed dividend accounts

Bank Deposits [refer note below) 41.89 40.05 58.71
Total 41.89 40.05 58.71

Deposit are kept with bank as a margin money against Letter of cradit [Buyer Credit facility utilised.

Loans (% in million}

Particulars

As at
30th September, 2021

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
1st April, 2020

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
a. Loans to Employees

- Secured, Considered Good

(a) Loans Recelvables considered good - Securad

- Significiant increase in credit risk

- Credit impaired
Less: Impairment for doubtful loans

(b) Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2.67 2.56 6.27
ic) Loans Receivables which have significant increase in Credit
Risk
(d) Loans Receivables - credit impaired
Total 2.67 2.56 6.27

1. Loans to employees are secured by way of hypothecation of house/ four wheeler/ two wheeler for which the loans have been given.

2. Loans to employees include an amount of % Nil (As at March 3L, 2021 =Nil , As at March 31, 2020 NIl ) outstanding from Key

Managerial Personnel.

Fi ial Assets - Others

(X in million)

As at

As at

As at

As at

Particulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021 st April, 2020
Interest Accrued on deposits and loans 0.21 0.38 -
Insurance Claim Receivable - - -
Praject Delight expenses related to IPO 292 - .
Other receivables 10.48 10.92 10.80
Total 13.60 1130 10.80
Current Tax Assets (net) [% in million)
Avit As at As at
Particul 5 , 2021 il, 202
articulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 1st April, 2020
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax Paid (Net of provisian for tax) 85.52 - 66.77
Current Tax Liabilities = Z =
Provision for Income Tax (Net of advance Tax) 53.45 - 54.64
Total 32.08 = 12.14
Other Current Assets (% in million)
As at As at

= W 1st April
Particulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021 st April, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with Government Authorities 28.17 34.87 43.38
Prepaid Expenses 4.23 4.38 2,21
Advances to vendors 219.54 167.84 46,63
Total 251.93 207.08 92.21
Assets classified as held for sale (X in million)

As at

As at

As at
Particul , 2 il, 202
articulars 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Bullding (Investment property) 173.55 - -
Total 173.55 - =

The resolution was passed and approved by the Board of Directors on August 16, 2021, for selling out the invesment property of ¥ 181,68
million , having written down value ¥ 173.55 million and pursuant to such approval, the investment property has been classified as asset
held for sale during the period. The rent income arising from the said invesment property net of direct expenses of 2 5.87 million (inculding

depreciation of  1.15 million) has been classified as profit from discontinued operations in accordance with IND AS 105 " Non-current asset
held for sale and Discontinued operations” , The income tax expense on the same amounts to % 1.48 million.




GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231G11989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Information

19 Equity Share Capital (% In milllan)
Piricilare As at 30th Asat As at
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Authorised
3,50,00,000 (March 31, 2021 815,000 March 31, 2020 815,000, March 31, 350.00 815 815
2012 815,000 Equity Shares of T 100/- each fully paid up) Equity Shares of ¢
104~ each fully paid up
Nil [March 31, 2021 7500 March 31, 2020 7500, March 31, 2019 7500 10% - 075 Q.75
Neon Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T 100/- each)
Nil {{March 31, 2021 2,500 March 31, 2020 2,500, March 31, 2018 2,500 - a o
Unclassified Shares of 1100/~ sach)
Total 350.00 82,25 82.25
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
2,01,54,750 {March 31,2021 403,095 March 31, 2020 263,500, March 31, 201.55 40.31 26.39
2019 261,900} Equity Shares of * 100/- =ach fully paid up
[Total 201.55 40.31 2632
1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period is as under:
Na. of Shares Share Capital
Particulars =
{Xin million)
As at 1st Aprll, 2018 # 0.26 26.1%
Additions/{Reductions) - -
As at 31st March 2019 8 0.26 26,19
As at 1st April, 2019 0.26 2619
Additions/(Reductions) 0.00 0.20
As at 315t March,2020 0.26 15.39
As at 1st April, 2020 0.26 2639
Shares issued pursuant to Business transfer® 0.14 0.00
As ar 31st March,2021 0.40 40.31
As at 1st April, 2021 0.40 4031
Effect of sub-division 4.03 40.31
Issue of bonus chares 16.12 161.24
As at 30th Sey ber, 2021 20.15 201.55
# Netted off due te shares held by partnership firms, which are included in the financial infermation under commen control,
* Refer note 51
2. Details of Shareholder holding more than 5 percent share in Comp y (% in million)
Particulars No. of shares % Holding
|Shallesh Desal
As at September 30, 2021 1248 66.88%
Asat March 21 2021 0.29 71.87%
As at March 31 2020 0.18 68.26%
As at March 31 2019 0.18 68.02%
As at March 31 2018 0.1% 68.02%
Umang Desal
As at September 30, 2021 333 16.51%
As at March 31 2021 o007 16.51%
As at March 31 2020 0.05 17.46%
Nilima Desai
As at September 30, 2021 1.04 5.18%
Asat March 31 2021 0.02 5.18%
As at March 31 2020 0.01 4.42%
Polysol Financial Services LLP
As at September 30, 2021 1.35 6.20%
As at March 31 2021 0.03 6.20%
As at March 31 2020 0.03 947%
3.Shares held by the p ers at the end of the year:
Sr.no Promoter name No.of shares % of total shares * Cht:':s:.l::ll‘iﬂs
1 Shailesh Desai 1,34,78,550 66.88% 4.99%
2 Umang Desaj 33,26,700 16.515% 0.00%

4. Right, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company every halder of an equity share as reflacted in the records of the
Company on the date of the shareholders meeting shall have one vets in respect of each share hald, Any dividend declared by the Company shall be
paid to each holder of Equity shares in praportion to the number of shares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In the evert of
liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be
distributed to the holders of aquity shares in praportion to the number of sheres held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date,

5. 139,195 equity shares of X 100/~ each fully paid up, were issued pursuant to the Business transfer agreement of Urmi Polymer Industries and
Polysol Industries with the company in 2020-2021 and these shares were Issued without payment being received in cash.

6. The Company has subdivided Equity Shares frem the Face Value of 100 to T10 per Share from April 15, 2021. Accordingly the shares are
subdivided with effect from that date.

7. The Company has allotted 1,61,23,800 number of fully paid Benus shares on 04/09/2021 in the ratio of four equity share of 210 each fully paid
up for every 1 exlsting equity shares of 210 each fully paid up.

20 Other Equity (X in millien)
Particulars As ar 30th As at As at
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Securities Premium 327.24 486.98 187.64
Capitz| Redemption Resarve B 1.50 150
Gereral Reserve 28.78 2878 28.78
Revaluation Reserve 174.76 174.76 17476
Share application pending allotment pursuant to Business Transfer - - 313.26
Capital Reserve -Comman Control (306.10) {306.10) (381.45)
Retained Earnings 1,145.70 995.36 535,01
Total 1,370 1,381 505
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I

1. Particulars relating to Other Equity [Xin million)
Particulars As at 30th Asat Asat
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

Securities Premium (Refer Note No.2)

Balance at the beginning of the year 486.98 187.64 184.16
Addition/{Deduction) during the year (159.74) 299.34 3.48
Balarce at the end of the year 327.24 486.98 187.64
General Reserve (Refer Note No.3)

Balance at the beginning of the year 28.78 28,78 2878
Addition/{Deduction) during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 28.78 2878 28.78
Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 1.50 1.50 1.50
Addition/{Deduction) during the year 11.50) - -
Balsnce at the end of the year - 1.50 1.50
Cash subsidy

Balance at the beginning of the year s

Addition/(Deduction) during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year -

Share application pending all i Transfi

Balance at the beginning of the year - 31326 31326
Addition/{Deduction) during the year - (313.76) -
Balance at the end of the year - - 313.26
Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year (306.10) (391.45) (328,08}
Addition/[Deductian) during the year - 25,37 {3.39)
Balance at the end of the year (306.10) [306.10} {391.46)
Revaluation Reserve

Balance at beginning of year 174.76 174.76 17476
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments - - -
Balance at end of year 174.76 174.76 174.76
Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 995,36 595,01 302 87
Profit after tax for the year 152.46 400.96 200.80
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of (2.13) {0.60)
defined benefit obligation, net of income tax 0.34
Balance at the and of the year 1,145.70 995.36 595.01

Total 1,370.39 1,381.29 800.49

2, Securities Premium is used to record the premium on issue of

Companies Act, 2013,
3. The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General Reserve |5

created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other com

reserve is not reclassified subseguently to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
4. Capital Reserva Is on account of Business Combinatian

5. Revaluation ressrve |s a non-cash reserve created to reflect the trus value of the assat

moare or less than the value of such asset at which It is recorded in the books of sccount.
E. share application maney pending allotment is with respect shares to be |ssued undar business combination

equity shares. The reserve Is utilised in accordance with the provision of the

prehensive income, items included in the general

when the market value of the certain category of asset is

Borrowings (T in million)
Particulars As at 30th As at Asat
Sef ber, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Secured
Term Loans - - -
From Banks 214.50 17275 154.83
From Others 257.34 28821 309.22
Unsecured = " =
Long term maturities of finance lease obligations - - =
Loans from refated parties - - -
less: Current maturities of Long term berrowings (78.38) (83.02) (123.78)
Liability component of compound financial instruments
Total 393.46 377.94 340.37
Particulars Repayment terms Type of charge Froperty of the Rate of interest Ny ["St_a I'IImenls Aount A ut
pany Charged g 30th Septemt
From Banks
HOFC bank limited
2 Repayat/e in 61 Hypothecation plant &|(il) Industrial Plot
monthly instalments | machinery ,mortgage No.1702/8
of Re.5,44,439 per Elc admeasuring 5000 sq.
months meters along with
construction of shed
admeasuring 2787.06
9. meters consisting 8.20% 16 7.83
of Survery No. 25/F,
27/P 106/P, 107/P and
110/P situated at Vapl
Notified Industrial
Estate GIiDC . Dist
Valsard
3. Hepayable in 240 Mortgage Against Guest House-
manthly instalments FLAT 1302, 13TH
of As.3,86,793 per FLOOR, SATGURL
) maonths SHLOK, 5 NO. FB 2718,
”rf";“:‘*" :To: F/718, :,fl, 36TH
. D, NR. NATIONAL
;::' COLLEGE, BANDRA, Ao 36 s
) WEST, MUMBAI -
;-( 400058 with Undivided
. proportionate share of
7. {and underneath.
-3
C
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Repayable in 60 Hypothecation on NEW HONDA BRV Car
|monthly instalments  |Vehicle for Which Lean Facility
of R5.26,586 per is Obtained, 9.36% 2 005
months
Repayatle in 60 NEW HONDA CRV Car 142
monthly instalments for Which Loan Facility
.70% 7
of Rs. 58,274 per is Obtained. % z
menths
Vehicle Loan Repayable in 60 NEW PORSCHE MACAN 5.74
mmaonthly instalments Car for Which Loan
of Rs.1,61,510 per Facility is Obtained. 8.35% 41
months
Repayable in 80 NEW RANGE ROVER 522
monthly instalments VELAR Car for Which
of Rs.1,46,791 per Loan Facility is 8.35% 41
months Obtained.
From Axis Bank -
Repayabie in 120 Hypothecation plant | Hypothecation af
i I 5 i C
Sustness losn menthly instalments, |& machinery urrent assets and 9.05% 28 43.35
Jmertgage ete Movable preperty of
the Company.
Repayable in 48 Hypothecation plant | Personal gurantee of
monthly Instalments |8 machinery Mr, Shailest 8 Desai,
Working Capital Term Loan after 12 manth ,mortgage etc Mrs, Nilima 5. Desal, 7.75% 48 51.50
moratorium period and Mr. Umang 5.
Desai.
Repayable in 48 Hypethecation plant
menthly instalments | & machinery
Warking Capital Term Loan after 12 month JMOTTEage ete 7.70% 48 56.40
moratorium period
From Financial institutions
) Pledge of share Pledge of 100% shares
0
il i of Triwal Board Pyt Ltd 10.35% 76 109,08
menthly instalments
Merigage 1. NA land situated at
Ri in120
";D::b:s;mems Ravenue Survey No, 10.25% 21 7.49
Y ' 114/4/1a paiki 3,
S —— Maoje. Abrama, Valsad
ADITYA BIRLA FINANCE LIMITED ey sdmeasuring 10252 S 10.25% 21 3511
menthly instalments.
Mtrs owned by
Shaileshkumar
R ble |
TR S el Batvantral Desal. 10.25% 21 67.42
manthly Instalments.
2.Personal Guarantee
by Mrs.Nilima Desal
Repayahle in 120
maonthly instalmerts. 10.25% 2 A
From Others- unsecured -
GOKUL REFOILS AND SCLVENT LIMITED Repayable at any - = 14.10
time.
Trade Payables {X in millien)
Baitiailars As at 30th As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 2020
September, 2021 2021
Miere, Small and Medium Enterprises - 5
Others 3.48 754 7.32
Total 3.48 7.54 7.32
Provisions (=% in million)
Particitate As at 30th Asat As at
Sep ber, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for Employee benefl
Gratuity 1.86 - 015
Unavailed Leave and compensated abserces 113 0.23 0.18
Provision for Others (Note No. 27.2)
Provision for Product warranties
Provision for Liquadated lossas
Prevision for decommissioning
Income tax payable (ret)
Total 2.99 0.23 0.32
Deferred tax Liabilities (net) (% in millien)
Particulars As at 30th As at Asat
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Deferrad Tax Liabilities 50.41 3559 29.19
Deferred Tax Assets 1.16 0.38 0.30
Total 49,25 35.21 2889




For the period 1-4-21 to 30-9-21 (X in millien)
Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Other Closing Balance
Statement of Profit Comprehensive
and Loss Income
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 35.59 50.41
14.82
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 35.59 14.82 - 50.41
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Expenses aliowed under tax on payment basis 0.38 0.07 0.72 116
Total Deferred Tax Assets 0.38 0.07 0.72 116
Net Deferred Tax 3521 14.75 (0.72) 49.25
For the year 2020-21 {TIn million}
Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Other Closing Balance
Statement of Profit Comprehensive
and Loss Income
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 29.18 35.59
6.39
Total Def; Tax Liabllities 29.19 6.39 - 35.59
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Expenses allowed under tax on payment basis 0.30 {0.13) 0.20 0.38
Tatal Deferred Tax Assets 0.30 (0.13) 0.20 0.38
Net Deferred Tax 28.89 6.52 (0.20) B2
Borrowings (X in million)
Parti As at 30th Asat Asat
ks Sey , 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Secured
Loans repayable on demand
-Working Capital Loans 279.711 184.41 178.85
Buyers Credit 159.96 111.93 37.34
Unsecured 3 L .
From Others 14.10 14,10 14.10
Current maturities of long-term debt 78.38 83.02 123.78
Total 532,15 39347 354.17
Particulars Type of charge Property of the Company Charged Amount As at
30th September,
2021
HDFC BANK LTD Mortgage/Hypothecat {i) Industrial Plot Ne, 1734 admeasuring 4625 sq, meters consisting of Survey Na, 123/F, 125/P
ion and 126/P situated at Vapi GIDC Vapl within the village limits of Chhiri Tal Vapi Dist Valsad.
(M) Industrial Plot No,1702/B admeasuring 5000 sq, meters along with construction of shed
admeasuring 2787.06 sg. meters consisting of Survery No. 25/P, 27/P 106/P, 107/F and 110/P
situated at Vapi Notified Industrial Estate GIDC . Dist Valsad,
lifHy pothecation of Current sssets and Movable property of the Company pari passu with Axis
Bank Ltd, 25386
Mortgage Commercial Plot Ne. C-6/2/B, adm about 3196 sq mtr, Consisting of Survey No. 490, 434, 495/1
and 435/2 along with Shop Mo, 22, 23, 39, 31, 33, 35, 36, 38 to 42, situated st Ground Floar,
Express House Office, Near CNG Pump, Vapi Notified Area, GIDC Char Rasta, NH No. 8, Vapl.
Mertgage NA Land bearing Survey No. no. 275/P5/P1, adm abeut 9560.50 sq mtr, Situated at Vapl, Ta.
Vapi, Dist. Valsad,
Fersonal Guarantee  |Personal Guarantee by Shailesh Desal, Umang Desai, Nilima Desal.
AXIS BANK LTD Mortgage/Hypotheeat |ijHypothecation of Current assats and Movable property of the Company pari passu with
len HOFC Bank Ltd
1. Land and Bullding at New Survey No: 1084 bearing old Survey No: 260/71/1/3 Situared at
Village Dadra of the Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Havell, adm 1232 5g M, alorg with
|construction thereon.
2. Land and Bullding at New Survey No: 1063 bearing old Survey No: 260/71/1/4 Situated at
Village Dadra of the Unlan Territary of Dadra and Nagar Havell, adm. 1346 5q Mt
3. Land and Buliding Plot No: C1B/106/1 to 4, Survey Ne: 23/P Plat No: C1B/106/1 to 4 Situated
at Sarigam Netified Industrial Estate, consisting Revenue Survey No: 23/P within the Village
limits of Sarigam, Taluka Umargaon, District Valsad adm 2985.88 5q Mtrs.
Mortgage 4. Land and Building situated at Survey Mo: 275/Paikes 5 after Pramulgation its New 185.81
Biock/Survey No: 92 Situated at Village Vapi, Taluka Vapl, District Valsad, Gujarat in the name
of Mr Shaileshbhai B. Desai, admeasuring $561.00 Sq Mtrs, along with construction therean
Mertgage 5. Land and Bullding situated at Survey No: 215/P Residential Plot No: 19 Situated at Village
Vapi, Taluka Vapi, Distrlct Valsad, Gujarat in the name of Mr Shaileshbhai B, Desai,
4 iring 624,00 Sq mtrs, along with construction thereon.
Mortgage 6. Land and Building Situated at Survey No: 2933, 2334, 2935, 7936, 2937 and 2938 Situated at

Village Vapi, Taluka Vapl, District Valsad, Gujarat in the name of Mr Umang Shaileshbhai Desai,

admeasuring 2704.50 Sq Mtrs, along with construction thereon.

Personal Guarantee

Personal Guarantee by Shailesh Desai, Umang Desai, Nilima Desai

Secured Loans comprise of cash credit & short term loans from banks which are further secy

In Shailesh Desai and other in the name of GPCL |

quity shares of Rs, 100 each held by a director (1 share

%‘;\ﬂe&a G
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Trade Payahles (Tin million)
Pl As at 30th As at As at
Sef , 2021 315t March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - %
Others 549.07 879.41 B891.75
Total 549.07 87941 B21.75
Outstanding for following periods fram due data of payment: { % in million)
Particulars As at 30th As at Asat
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Less than 1 year 548.07 B79.41 891.35
1to 2 years 181 308 0.77
2 to 3 years 0.01 021 4.95
More than 3 years 1.66 4.24 159
Total 552.55 B86.95 B9B.66

1. Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and eanditions of

days.

2. The amount due ta Micro and Small Enterprises as definad in the “The Micro,

the contract / purchase orders. The average credit period |s 30 -90

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008" has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information availabl with the Company, The di es relating te Micro
and Small Enterprises are as below:
Bavaki = As at 30th As at Asat
Trade Pay -Total g dues of Micro & Small Enterprises* = S AL 315t March, 2021 1t Agril, 2020
Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any - - -
suppiier at the end of each accounting year
Interest paid by the Company In terms of Section 16 of Micre, Small and % = E
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
necounting year;
Interest due and payable for the period of delay In making payment {which - =
have been paid but bayond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the [nterest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at of end of sach accounting year - -
Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - =
until such date when the |nterest dues as above are actually paid 1o the
small enterprise
*Based on the confirmation from Vendors.
Other Financial Liabilities (% in millien)
Particulars As at 30th Asat Asat
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Interest Payabie on Loan - = -
Expenses payable 13.84 585 B8.55
Depasits taken 3.04 310 312
Total 16.88 894 91.67
Other Current Liabilities (% in million)
Particulars As at 30th As at Azat
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Advance from Customers 17.74 12.02 10.12
Liability for Statutory Fayments 7.05 4.40 4.18
Total 24.80 16.41 14.29
Provisions [%in million)
Particulars As B‘I 30th As at Asat
5 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for Employee benef|
Gratuity 1.54 125 C.BE
Unavailed Leave and compensated absences 0.09 0.02 0.01
[Total 1.63 1.27 0.87
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) (% in milllan)
Particulars As at 30th Asat As at
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Current Tax Uiability
Income Tax Payable % 130.25 -
Current Tax Assets -
Tax Rafund Recelvable - (127.48)
Total - 237 -
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Revenue from Operations

(% in million)

For the Period ended

For the year ended

Paeticiians 30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Sale of Products
Manufactured goods 1,713.15 3,212.30
Traded goods
Trading of Chemicals 99.54
Crude Palm Oil,Soyabeen Oil & N Butyl Acrylate in Bulk

’ 562,50

Sale of Services
Jobwork Charges Received 2.04 5.66
Rent Income - 13.80
Other Operating Revenues
Incentive from State Government =
Scrap Sales 3.10 -
Export Incentives 0.66 1.81
Total 1,818.49 3,796.06
Other Income (X in million)

Particulars

For the Period ended
30th September, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost

Interest on deposit with bank 0.54 2.96
Others 0.21 0.84
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation - 2.88

Scarp sale of Plant & Machinery 12.82 -
Sundry balance written back 0.11 1.55
Other Income 0,01 0.02
Total 13.69 8.26
Cost of materials consumed {% in million)
For the Period ended For the year ended

Particulars

30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Consumption of Raw Materials 1,296.39 2,233.19
Total 1,296.39 2;233.19
(% in million)

Particulars For the Period ended For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Raw materials consumed (including packing materials)

Opening Stock 274.03 21185
Add : Purchases (Net) 1,369.76 2,285.37
Less : Closing Stock 347.91 274.03
Total 1,296.39 2,233.19
Purchase of Stock in Trade (% in million)

Particulars

For the Period ended

Faor the year ended

30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Purchase of stock in trade - -
Trading of Chemicals 84.17
Crude Palm Qil,Soyabeen OIl & N Butyl Acrylate in Bulk
- 555.64
Total B84.17 555.64




35 Changes In Inventories (% in million)
Paiticalars For the Period ended For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Opening stock:
Work-in-progress 109.62 72.84
Finished goods 21.46 44.15
Total (A) 131.08 116.99
Closing stock:
Work-in-progress 192.01 109.62
Finished goods 5.92 21.46
Total (B) 197.93 131.08
Total(A-B) (66.85) (14.09)
36 Employee Benefits Expense (% in million)
For the Period ended For the year ended
Particulars
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 54.12 £6.90
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2.43 2.46
Staff welfare expenses 0.93 1.51
Total 57.48 70.88
37 Finance Costs (% in million)
For the Period ended For the year ended
Particulars
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Interest on:
Borrowings from banks 28.55 60.57
Others 212 6.94
Loan processing fees and bank charges 4.74 9.86
Total 35.41 77.37
38 Depreciation and amortisation expense (% in million)
Particulars For the Period ended | For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment ( Refer note 4) 17.86 2851
Depreciation on Investment Property ( Refer note 5) - 2.30
Amortisation of Intangible assets ( Refer note &) 0.11 0.07
Total 17.98 30.88
39 Other Expenses (% in million)
T T For the Period ended | For the year ended
30th September, 2021 |  31st March, 2021
Consumption of stores & spares parts 2,15 211
Laboratory Expenses 0.31 1.23
Effluent Treatment Charges 0.80 1.19
Notified Area Charges 0.51 1.22
Power and fuel 67.35 113.08
Freight Inwards Charges - -
Loading & Unloading & Weighting charges 2.83 3.19
Water Charges 0.64 0.64
Security Charges 0.52 -
Exchange fluctuation (net) 1.46 -
Insurance 5.48 3.89
Legal expenses 6.22 17.58
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - Net 4.69 0.96
General Office Expenses 0.71 0.26
Payment to Auditors 0.24 0.48
Rent, Rates & stamp duty, Taxes 11.60 20.80
Travelling and conveyance 2.09 1.35
Repairs -
- Buildings 0.67 1.35
- Machinery 12.51 24.75
- Others 7.77 13.14
Professional Tax - 0.00
Advertising/Sales promotion 0.38 111
Commission on Purchase 0.35 0.10
Commission to selling agents 2,87 4.16
Doubtful and bad debts 0.05 1.10
Clearing & Forwaring Expenses 2.79 2.78
Miscellaneous expenses A X 2.07 6.15
Freight & Forwarding, packing Expenses __l kS ',;‘-‘CP 52.56 84.91
Total T I 189.60 307.62
~, \._../(’U'
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(i) Payment to auditors has been classified below (Excluding Taxes): (X in million)
Particulars For the Period ended For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
(a) Auditor, 0.10 0.20
(b) For taxation matters, 0.08 0.15
(c) For company law matters, - -
(d) For other services, 0.06 0.13
{e) For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 0.24 0.48
(i) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:
Gross amount of CSR expenditure required to be spent and actually spent are as follows: (% in million)

Particulars

For the Period ended
30th September, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 3.24 3.72
C5R Spent 3.24 3.72
Details of C5R expenditure are as follows: (% in million)
2 For the Period ended | For the year ended
Particulars

30th September, 2021

31st March, 2021

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

Paid in cash 0.50 2.00
Yet to be paid in cash 2.74 -
{ii) For purpose other than (i) above - 1.72
Tax Expense (% in million)
Particulars For the Period ended For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Current tax in relation to:
Current years 55.18 135.34
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year 14.75 6.52
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 69.93 141.86
(i) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: (% in million)

Particulars

For the Period ended
30th September, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Profit before tax 223,87 542.82

Income tax expense calculated at 25.17% 56.35 136.63

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable

income:

Expenses not allowed in Income Tax 0.13 0.45

Other Impacts 13.45 4.77
£69.93 141.86

Other Comprehensive Income (% in million)

Particulars For the Period ended For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021

A - Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (2.85) (0.81)

Incorme tax related to above 0.00 0.00
(2.85) (0.81)

B - Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss

Total (2.85) (0.81)
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Earnings Per Share

(X in million)
il For the Period ended | For the year ended
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021

Profits avallable to equity shareholders (in g) 152.46 400.96
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

- Basic 20.15 18.99
- Diluted 20.15 20.15
Earnings Per Share

- Basic 7.56 2111
- Diluted 7.57 19.90
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Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Cantributions to defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses when contributions become dus.

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel, Any expense recognised in relation to these schemes

represents the value of contributions payable during the periad by the Company at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in
the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

The major defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:

(i) Provident fund and Pension:

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1852 eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make manthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary.

The contributicns, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company, post contribution of amount
specified under the law to Employee Provident Fund Organisation on account of employee pension scheme.

The total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year are as under: (% In millian)
Particulars For the Period ended 30th| For the year ended March
September, 2021 31, 2021
Employer's contribution to Provident and other Funds 2.43 2.46
Total 2,43 2.46
(b) Defined Benefit Plan:
(i) Gratuity:

The Company has defined benefit plans that provide gratuity benefit. It Is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act,
employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in
employment. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the time of retirement/termination age. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at September 30, 2021 by a member
firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the projected unit credit method. Fach year, the Company reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. The Company decides its
contribution based on the results of its annual review.

This plan typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, Liquidity Risk, Market risk and Legislative risk,
(1) Investment Risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the falr value of instruments backing

the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assats is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability
or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter valuation period .
(1) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. |f some of such employees
resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

(1) Market Risk:
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a

material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of maney. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit
Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the cor porate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability

is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

(IV) Legislative Risk:

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may
amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the

Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

Amounts recognized in the Financial Infarmation in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows: (X in million)
Particulars For the Period ended 30th For the year ended
September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Service Cost:
Current Service Cost 0.65 1.10
Net interest expense/ (income) 0.02 0.04
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Employee Benefit Expenses 0.67 1.14
Re-measurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions - 0.19
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments 2.83 0.60
Return on Plan Assets excluding amount included in net interest cost 0.02 0.02
Components of Re-meast 2.85 0.81
Total 3.52 1.95




The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation In respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows :

Particulars

30th September, 2021

(% in million)
As at As at
Particulars
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 9.41 581
Fair value of plan assets {6.00) (4.56)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 3.41 1.25
Mavements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: {% in million)
Particulars A5 8 SRt
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Opening defined obligation 5.81 4.20
Current service cost 0.65 110
Interest cost 0.18 0.28
Re-measurement (gains)/losses : ¥
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions - 0.19
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from experience adjustments 2.83 0.60
Benefits paid (0.05) (0.56)
Closing defined benefit obligation 9.41 5.81
Maovements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: (T in million)
Particulars LS AE
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
QOpening value of plan assets 4.56 3.20
Interest income 0.16 0.24
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income {0.02) (0.02)
Contributions by employer 1.36 1.71
Benefits paid (0.05) [0.56)
Closing defined benefit obligation 6.00 4.56
Classification of Non-Current and Current Liability: (% in million)
Particulars (s Asat
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Non-Currant liability 1.54 -
Current liability 1.86 1.25
Total 3.41 1.25
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
As at As at

31st March, 2021

Maortality

Withdrawal Rates

10.00% p.a at younger
ages reducing to 2.00%
p.a% at older ages

10.00% p.a at younger
ages reducing to 2.00%
p.a% at older ages

Discount Rate (%) 6.45% p.a. 6.45% p.a.
Salary escalation rate (%) 7.00% p.a. 7.00% p.a.
Rate of Return on Plan Assets (%) 6.45% p.a. 6.45% p.a.
The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category are as fallows:
Particulars Avat fiek
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Managed by insurer (Life Insurance Corporation of India) 100% 100%

Fair value of Investment in Insurance Company is taken as book value on reporting date.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate,

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

expected salary increase and withdrawal rates. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

(% in million)
Significant actuarial assumptions Ay ar At
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021

Discount Rate
Up by 0.5% 9.01 5.54
Down by 0.5% 9,83 6.09
Salary increase =
Up by 0.5% 9.82 6.09
Down by 0.5% 9.01 5.54
Withdrawal Rate -
Up by 0.5% : 9.37 5.78
Down by 0.5% FES 9.45 5,83




The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolatien of one another as some of tha assumptions may be correlated. Sensitivity due to mortality are not material & hence
impact of change not calculated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations: (X in million)
Particulars Aok a3t
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021
Less Than One Year 1.04 0.44
One to Three Years 1.18 111
Four to Five Years 0.96 0.71
Mare than Five Years 5.13 233
Total 8.32 5.59

(c) Other long term employee benefit plans
Leave encashment
Amount of  0.99 million {31st March 2021 % 0.06 million) is recognised as expenses and included in note no.36 "Employee benefit expense".
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45 Lease

The Company has entered into agreements for leasing lease hold lands on lease. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use'

asset.
The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

2. Applied the short-term lease exemnption to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial application
3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4, Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

5. The accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at transition date as short-term lea

ses.

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under previous GAAP.

These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incrementa
Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss & Carrying Amount of Asset:

| borrowing rate.

[Zin million)

For the Period ended | For the year ended

Particulars 30th September, 2021| 31st March, 2021
Depreciation recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 0.27 0.23
Expenses relating to short-term leases (leases more than 30 days but less than 12 months) 10.55 18.01
Total cash outflow for leases 10.55 18.01
Additions to ROU Assets during the year 35.12 0.61
Net Carrying Amount of ROU at the end of the year 52.49 17.64

The details of Right of Use Asset included in Property, Plant and Equipment (Note no. 4) held as lessee by class of underlying asset is presented below:
(% in million)
As at 30th September, Asat

Leasshold Land 2021 315t March, 2021
Opening Balance 17.64 17.27
Additions During the year 35.12 0.61
Depreciation Recognized During the year 0.27 0.23
Net Carrying value 52.49 17.64
The table below provides details regarding amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: (% in million)

Particulars As at 30th September,| As at 31st March,

2021 2021

Expenses relating to short-term leases and/or leases of low-value items 10.55 180

Depreciation expense 0.27 0.23

Total 10.82 18.25
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46 Segment Information
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing activity of agro chemicals, construction chemicals & leather chemicals etc. The Board of Directors being the Chief

Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry
classes. All operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly by CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risks and returns hence, CODM reviews them as one component. Further, the economic
environment in which the Company aperates is significantly similar and nat subject to materially different risk and rewards. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as
per the Statement of profit and loss represents the revenue, total expenses and net profit of the sole reportable segment.

A Geographical information
The geographical information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company's country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of the customer and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of

the assets.

Revenue from operations (% in million)
; For the Period ended 30th| For the year ended

Particulars September, 2021 March 31, 2021

Revenue from external customers

India 1,667.27 3,152.89

Rest of the world 145.42 621.90

Total 1,812.69 3,774.80
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47 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (% in million)
5 As at 30th September, As at As at
faikiaiimy 2021 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020
i) Capital Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to executed on capital
account and not provided for - - -
ii) Contingent liabilities
Guarantee Deposits with Banks 3.21 3.21 3.21
Letter of Credit not accepted till date 107.30 72.64 117.77
Income Tax Matters 2.85 2.85 0.00
Excise & GST Matters 14.30 14.30 0.00
Total 127.66 93.00 120.98




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN 1U24231G11989PLCO12892)
Notes to Financial information

48

Related Party Disclosures

Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

I. Key Management Personnels

Shailesh Desai
Umang Desal
Nilima Desai

Bhavisha Desal

Vijay Agarwal
Sandhya Borase
Rajesh Singh
Dipakkumar Sanghani
Khushru Petigara

Chairman & Managing Director

Whaole Time Director

Directar {(up to 21-07-2021)

Whole Time Director (with effect from 13-09-2021) & Additional Director {upto 13-
09-2021)

Independent Director (with effect from 21-09-2021)

Independent Director (with effect from 21-09-2021)

Chief Executive Officer (with effect from 01-04-2021}

Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary

Chief Operating Officer (with effect from 17-02-2022) |

II. Key Management Personnel or their relatives having significant influence over the entity:

Apurva International

Polysol Financial services LLP
Sarigram Industrial Products
Bhavisha Industries

Polysal Specialty Chemicals Private Limited
Apurva Chemicals Private Limited (Erstwhile Apurva Chemicals,

Partnership Firm converted to Private Limited from February 20, 2020

lli. Entity is a post employment benefit plan for the benefit of p

yees of the Company

Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Private Limited -EGG Scheme

IV. Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Shirish Desai

Sanjay Desai

V. Trusts

Rotary Shalkshanik and Tabibi Seva Sahayak

VI. KMP is KMP in another entity:

Menumate Private Limited
Shailesh Desai HUF

Transactions during the year: (X in million)
Particulars For the Period ended For the year ended For the year ended March
30th September, 2021 March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Purchase
Apurva International i = 138.82 102.65
Total | - 138.82 102.65
Sales
Apurva Chemicals Pvt Ltd 3.14 48.61 50.98
Apurva International - - 186.68
Bhavisha Industries - - 1.60
Menumate India Private Limited - - 14.85
Sarigram Industrial Products - 0.03 =
Total 3.14 48.64 254,10
Rent Income
Apurva International 1.65 3.22 3.07
Total 1.65 3.22 3.07
Expenses
Jobwork Charges Paid
Bhavisha industries 16.59 15.68 13.68
Total 16.59 15.68 13.68
Salary Expenses
Bhavisha Desai 0.17 0.36 0.36
Nilima Desai 0.23 - -
Dipakkumar Sanghani 0.86 0.23 -
Rajesh Singh 5,85 0.19 -
Total 7.10 0.78 0.36
Gratuity Insurance Contribution
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Private Limited -EGG Scheme 1.36 1.74 -
Total 1.36 1.74 -
12\ o
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Warehouse rent

Bhavisha Desai 8.15 16.30 16.30
Total 8.15 16.30 16.30
Donation
Rotary Shaikshanik and Tabibi Seva Sahayak - 0.15
Total - 0.15 -
Director Remuneration
Shailesh Desai 3.00 5.00 2112
Umang Desai 1.80 2.60 B.68
Nilima Desai 0.37 1.20 1.20
Bhavisha Desai 0.10 - -
Total 5.27 8.80 31.00
Purchase/Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Bhavisha Desai - - 20.42
Total - - 20.42
Interest on Unsecured Loan
Bhavisha Desai - 5
Umang Desal - - 0.12
Total - - -
Interest Paid
Shaileshkumar Desal . - 21.22
Umang Desai - - 0.47
Nilima Desai - - 0.46
Shailesh Desal-HUF - = ¥
Total - - 22,15
Investment in wholly owned Subsidiary
Polysol Specialty Chemicals Private Limited - 0.50 -
Total - 0.50
Sale of Investment in Ily owned Subsidiary
Polysol Specialty Chemicals Private Limited - 0.50 -
Total - 0.50 -
Outsatnding Balances as at : (X in million)
Particulars As at As at As at
30th September, 2021 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Advance to supplier
Bhavisha Industries 30.45 15.15 18.74
Apurva International 39.26 = -
Sarigam Industrial Products 0.31 0.31 0.31
Total 70.01 15.46 19.05
Loan Given:
Shirish Desai 10.37 10.37 10.37
Sanjay Desal 0.10 0.10 0.10
Total 10.47 10.47 10.47
Receivables:
Apurva Chemicals Pvt Ltd 14.69 28.31 16.49
Apurva International - 0.01 50.57
Total 14.69 28.32 67.06
Advances from Customers
Apurva International 5.80 2.60 -
Menumate Private Limited - -
Total 5.80 2.60 -
Payables:
Bhavisha Desai 0.30 =
Bhavisha Industries - - -
Apurva International - 8.91 231
Tatal 0.30 B8.91 231
Expenses Payable
Director Remuneration Payable
Shaileshkumar Desal - 1.01 -
Umang Desai 0.45
Nilima Desai - 0.29 =
Bhavisha Desal 0.10 >
Vijay Gopi Kishan Agarwal 0.06 -
Sandhya Mahesh Borase 0.06 - -
Total 0.22 1.75 -
Salary Payable
Nilima Desai 0.09 = -
Rajesh Singh 0.75 - -
Dipakkumar Sanghani 0.13 -
Total 0.96 - -
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49 Capital management

) (CIN :U24231G11989PLC012892)

The Company's palicy is to maintain stable ring strong capital base structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to sustain future development and growth of the business. The Com
on its equity shares. The Company's objective when managin

safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to equity’
defined as short-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalent, bank balanc

equity includes issued capital and all other equity reserves,
The Company's adjusted net debt equity ratio were as follows:

pany monitor's the return on capital as well as the level of dividends
g capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value and

- For the purpose of Company's capital management, adjusted net debt is
e other than cash and cash equivalents and current investments and total

3 As at 30th As at As at
Particulars
September, 2021 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Short term borrowings 532.15 393.47 354.17
Less : cash and cash equivalent 1.09 8.93 13.48
Less : Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 41.89 40.05 58.71
Less : Current Investments - - <

Adjusted net debt 489.18 344.49 281.97
Total equity 1,571.93 1,421.60 935.88
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.31 0.24 0.30
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50 Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk management
The Company's Board of Directors have averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework, The Company's risk

management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitar risks and
adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a3 disciplined and constructive control envirenment in which all

employees understand their roles and responsibilities.

(i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally fram the Company's receivables from customers and loans given. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. Tha Company assesses the cradit quality of the counterparties, taking into

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The carrying amount of financial asset represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivahbles:

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. However, the management also considers the factars that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base. Customers of the Company are spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. The Campany limits its exposure
to credit risk from trade receivables by esta blishing a maximum credit period and takes appropriate measures to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults,
Recurring credit evaluation of credit worthiness is performed based on the financial condition of respective customer. The Company has assessed and evaluated the

expected credit loss far the year to be % Njl ,
{ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compariy will not be able to meet its financial obligation as they become due. The Company's approach ta managing liguidity is to

ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Management monitors rolling forecast of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out by the management in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company.

In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring

balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Financing arrangement:
The Company maintains the following line of credit:

(i) Cash credit for banks from carry interest rate of 8.20% per annum, computed on a monthly basis on actual amount utilized, and are repayable on demand. These
are secured by pari passu charge on movable and immovable property of the Company.

(i) The Company has availed bill discounting facility (with recourse) from banks which carries interest between (31 March, 2021 8.50% to 8.65% per annum; 31 March
2020: 8.65% to 9.65%; 31 March 2019: 9.50% to 9.65%) and is payable within 45 days from the date of discounting of bills.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

({Proforma). The armounts are gross and undiscounted contractual cash flow includes contractual interest payment and excludes netting arrangements:

(% in million)
As at 30th September 2021 Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carrying Amount Total 0-1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings 925.61 925.61 532.15 393.46
Lease liabilities - - -
Trade payables 552.55 552.55 549.07 3.48
Other financial liabilities 16.88 16.88 16.88 -

(% in million)
As at 31st March 2021 Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carrying Amount Total 0-1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings 771.41 771.41 383.47 377.94
Lease liabilities
Trade payables B86.95 B8B86.95 879.41 7.54
Other financial liabilities 8.94 8.94 8.94 -

(R in million)
As at 31st March 2020 Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carrying Amount Total 0-1 year Moare than 1 year
Borrowings 594.44 694.44 354.17 340.27
Lease liabilities
Trade payables 899.06 899.06 891.75 7.32
Other financial liabilities 91.67 91.67 91.67 -




(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk as discussed below:

A) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and purchases are denominated and the
respective functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is primarily INR. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily
denominated are USD, EUR, IPY etc.

Management monitars the movement in foreign currency and the Company's exposure in each of the foreign currency. Based on the analysis and study of movement
in foreign currency, the Company decides to exchange its foreign currency.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to management is as follows:

(T in million)
Particulars Trade receivables Trade payables Total

As at 30th September, 2021
Amount in foLHgg currency (USD)
Amount in T
As at 31st March, 2021
Amount in foreign currency (USD) 0.30 5.94 6.24
Amount in % 1657.40 450.68 2108.08
As at 31st March, 2020 0.00 0.00 0.00
Amount in foreign currency (USD) 0.09 4.18 4.28
Amount in % 1471.98 497.97 1969.95

B) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the companies’s borrowings with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity Lo a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.2% increase or decrease in intarest rate, with all other

Particular As at 30th September, As at
2021 31st March, 2021
Effect on Profit before tax
Decrease by 0.2% 0.90 0.87
Increase By 0.2% (0.20) (0.87)

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are either non-interest beari
such instruments is negligible.

ng or fixed interest bearing instruments, the company's net exposure to interest risk on

The above sensitivity analysis s based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the company’s borrowings while assuming all other variables

to be constant.

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reparting date,

that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable benchmarks.

) Equity Price risk
There is no Equity Price risk in the company

the company's management has concluded
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Financial instruments - fair values and risk management
Accounting classification and fair value
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities including their level of fair value hierarchy:

Fair value hierarchy

The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financlal statements

To provide an indication abaut the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standard.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 30th September, 2021;

{Z in million)
. Carrying Amount Fair Value
FaNean 30-5ep-21 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 s
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 267 2.67 2,67
Total financial assets 2.67 | = = 267 2,67
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Current borrowings 532.15 532,15 532.15
Trade payables 552.55 552.55 552,55
Other financial liabilities 16.88 16.88 16.88
Total financial liabilities 1,101.58 - - 1,101.58 1,101.58
The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021
(% in million)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value Total
31-Mar-21 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 2.56 2.56 2.56
Total financial assets 2.56 - - .56 2.56
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Lease liabilities
Current borrowings 39347 3593.47 393.47
Trade payables 886.95 886.95 B86.95
Other financial liabilities 894 B.94 8.94
Total financial liabilities 1,289.37 - - 1,289.37 1,284.37
The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020:
(% in million}
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value Total
31-Mar-20 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 6.27 6.27 6.27
Total financial assets 6.27 - - 6.27 6.27
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Current borrowings 354.17 354.17 354,17
Trade payables 899.06 899.06 899.06
Other financial liabilities 9167 91.67 91.67
Total financial liabilities 1,344.90 = = 1,344.90 1,344.50

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1! Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-caunter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. This includes investment in mutual funds, The fair values of investments in units of mutual

fund are based on the Net Asset Value (NAV) as per the fund statement.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on phservable market dats, the instrument is included in level 3.

Fair valuation method
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values. Investrnents in mutual funds carried at

fair value are generally based on the Net Asset Value (NAV) as per the fund statament.
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Business Combination

Business Purchase of Partnership Firms- Polysol Industries & Urmi Polymer Industries:

The Company had entered into a Business Transfer Agreements (‘Agreement’) dated May 29, 2020 and acquired the
businesses of Polysol Industries and Urmi Polymer Industries (Collectively known as ‘Transferors’), both being Partnership
Firms, effective April 1, 2020 ('Acquisition date'). Urmi Polymer Industries was earlier acting as Job-worker of the Company.
Polysol Indstries was engaged in the trading of Edible oil and manufacturing of ferric and non-ferric Alum. Both businesses
were transferred to gain the synergies of businesses.

Pursuant to this Agreement, the Company has agreed to make the payment of Purchase consideration amounting to 142.44
Million and 170.81 Million to Pelysol Industries and Urmi Polymer Industries respectively, through the mode by issuing Equity
Shares of the Company.

The Transferors were Partnership Firms and Shareholders of the Company were Partners of the firm, Since the Company and
Firms have in turn been controlled by Common parent Mr. Shailesh Desai, the transaction has been accounted for in
accordance with the Appendix C to Ind AS 103 “Common Control Business Combination”, which requires retroactive
accounting of the merger from the date common control was established. Accordingly, financial information as on April 1,
2018, being the earliest period presented in the restated financial statement of the Company and all periods, thereafter, have
been restated to give effect of the merger.

The accounting effects arising out of business transferrer are explained below:

(a) Equity shares amounting to %13.92 Million required to be issued to Partners and Share Premium amounting to $299.34

Million, has been accounted for as an item of equity on April 1, 2018, as equity shares proposed to be issued.

(b) The carrying value of the assets, liabilities and reserves as appearing in their respective financial statements of Firms have

been recognised in the financial statements of the Company.

(c) The net effects of < 130.57 Million arising out of the above adjustments have been recognised as a capital reserve on April 1,

I

(a)

(b)

(c)

2018.

Amalgmation of wholly owned subsidia ry- Triwal Board Private Limited:

The Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) far amalgmation of Triwal Board Private Limited ("Transferor") with the Company
with effect from January 1, 2018, ("the appointed date") has been approved by the Regional Director, North West Region
("RD, NWR") (Central Government), Ahmedabad Bench vide Order dated August 28, 2018.

Since the merger was accouted under Pooling of Interest method as presribed under AS-14 Accounting for Amalgmation,
difference between purchase consideration and share capital was adjusted with reserves of the transferee. However,he
merger has been accounted as prescribed under Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 — Business
Combinations. this arrangement has been accounted under “common control” and the said Ind AS requires that the figures
of the transferor company be incorporated in the comparative statements for the previous Financial Years 2017-18 (for the
period prior to the Appointed Date).

The fallowing accounting treatment, inter-alia, has been given effect to the Scheme:

As per Ind AS 103, all assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of transferor have been recorded in the books at their
respective carrying amounts after eliminating intra group balances and transactions. Necessary adjustments have been made
to ensure proper allocation of common assets and liabilities. The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial
statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and is appearing in the financial statements of the transferee in the same
form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor. Thus, all reserves which were adjusted under AS 14-
accounting of Pooling of Interest method, are again aggregated with the reserves of transferee so as to maintain the identity
of reserves of Transferor Company. As a result of preserving the identity, reserves which are available for distribution as
dividend before the business combination would also be available for distribution as dividend after the business combination.

Since, the transferor company was the wholly owned subsidiary of transfaree company, investment in the books of transferee
Is cancelled with the share capital of transferor and the difference between investment in books of transferee and share
capital of transferor is shown as Capital Reserve on Business Combination in the Other Equity.

The net effects of % 209.30 Million arising out of the above adjustments have been recognised as a capital rese
2018.
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52 First Time Adoption of Ind AS- Reconcillation

{

fi

ii

The Financial Statements of the Company as at September 30, 2021 has been prepared under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS") notified under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 and other
relevant provisions of the Act, to the extent applicable.

These Ind AS financial statements, for the period ended September 30, 2021, are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For years up
to and Including the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("IGAAP” or “Previous GAAR"),

The Company has followed the same accounting policy and accounting policy choices (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed as per Ind
AS 101) as initially adopted on transition date i.e. April 01, 2020. Accordingly, suitable restatement adjustments (bath re-measurements and reclassifications) in
the accounting heads are mada ta the Ind AS Financial Statements as of and for the years ended March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020 following accounting policies
and accounting policy choices (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions) consistent with that used at the date of transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1 April
2020).

| Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions
The accounting policies have been applied in preparing the Restated financial information. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and
mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

=

Optional exemptions availed:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statement as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustment for decommissioning liabilities. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their
previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date Aprli 01, 2020.

The Company has elected to measure intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.

i} Business Combination
As per Ind AS, at the date of transition an entity may elect not to restate business combination that occurred before the date of transition. If the entity restate
any business combination that occurred befora the date of transition, then It restates all later business combinations. The Company has elected to apply Ind AS
103, Business Combinations retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the Ind AS transition date of 01 April 2020.

i) Leases - Right-of-use Asset and Lease Liability
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 by applying exemption provided under Ind AS 101. Following approach is followed on transition date (April 01, 2020)
when applying Ind AS 116 initially:
) lease liability is recognised, for leases which were previously classified as operating leases, by measuring the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
i1} 3 right of use assets is recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the Statement of assets and liahilities immediately before the date of initial application.
The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
a) used a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
b) applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with |ease term that ends within 12 months st the date of initial application; and
c) excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

(iv) Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition

(i

i

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A (b] of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date

of transition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply the Ind AS 109 prospectively to financial assets and financial liabilities after its transition date,

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of

transition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisicns of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

i) Classificatien and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and drcumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the
standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if
retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that
exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable.

[iii) Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required
under previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in
preparation of financial statements that were nat required under the previous GAAP are listed below: F

Il Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS >
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tab s.represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.




(1) Reconciliation of total equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Particulars Notes to first time As at
adoption March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Total Equity (shareholders funds) as per previous GAAP 1,486.52 1,089.15
Adjustments:
Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits 0] 1.50 1.20
Lease Amaortisation (i) 9.07 6.53
Tax impact 15.83 15.90
Others (0.73) (0.73)
Reversal of internally generated goodwill (iii) 54.73 60.48
Impact of Business Combination (15.48) 69.89
Total Adjustments 64.92 153.28
Total Equity as per Restated Ind AS 1,421.60 935.88
(if) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Particulars Notes to first time|  For the year
ended
adoption March 31, 2021
Profit After Tax as per previous GAAP 402.44
Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits (i) (0.50)
Lease Amortisation (i) 2.53
Reversal of goodwill amortisation (iii) (5.75)
Tax impact 519
Net profit under Ind AS 400.96
Less; Other Comprehensive Income(Net of Tax) 0.60
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 400.36

(iii) Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Restated Summary Statement of Cash Flows
There were no material differences between the restated summary statement of cash flow and cash flow statement under previous GAAP.

Il Notes to First Time Adoption:
(i} Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits
Upto the year ended March 31, 2021 the Company did not make provision for gratuity and leave encashment in accordance with the requirement of applicable

accounting standard. Accordingly, provision for gratuity and leave encashment has been restated by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 in
accordance with ind AS 19. Further, provision for gratuity and leave encashment upto year ended 31 March 2020 which were not booked earlier as per
applicable accounting standard, is debited/credited to retainad earning as at April 01, 2020,

Under the previous GAAP, the remeasurements of the defined benefit plans were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Under Ind AS, these

remeasurements of the defined benefit plans i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interaest

expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

(il) Leases
Under previous GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk and rewards

Incident to the ownership of an asset, Operating lease were expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS 116, all arrangement that fail under the
definition of lease except those for which short-term lease exemption or low value exemption Is applied, the Company has recognised a right-of-use assets and
a lease liability on the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets is amortised over the lease term on 3 straight line basis and lease liability is measured at

amortised cost at the present value of future lease payments.

Under previous GAAF, the Company had not amortised leasehold land. In accordance Ind AS 116, the Company has identified |leasehold land to be Right of Use
(ROU) asset and hence applied Ind AS 116 retrospectively to give the impact of amortisation, As a cansequence, the depreciation in the Statement of Profit and

Loss for the period/year ended September 30, 2021 and March 31, 2021 has increased and there is corresponding decrease in the value of ROU Assels,
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53 Impact and future uncertainties relating to Global health pandemic from COVID-19
The Company has considered the possible effects that may resuit from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of the Restated financial information including there coverability
of carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets. Further the impact assessment does not indicate any adverse impact an the ability of theCompany to continue as a going concern, In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the giobal aconomic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of the Restated
financial information, used internal and external sources of information including credit reparts and related information and economic forecasts and expects that the carrying amount of the
assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Group's Restated financial information may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Restated financial
information.

54 From the Financial Year 2019-20 and for subsequent period, the Company has after evaluation, decided to adopt the option permitted under section 1158AA of Income Tax Act, 1961 (as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019) of the lower effective corparate tax rate of 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) instead of the earlier rate of 29,12 and
34.60% (including surcharge and cess). Accordingly, the Company has recognized the Provision for Income Tax for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 and subsequant period based on
the rates prescribed in the aforesaid section.

55 Figures for the period ended September 30, 2021 in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flows and the respective notes are for the period of 6
months (April 01, 2021 to September 30, 2021), whereas the details in said statements and notes for the other years presented are for 12 months. To this extent, figures reported for period
ended September 30, 2021 are not comparable with other year figures.

56 Following the break out of 3 fire in one of factory premises situated at SRV NO.260/7/1/3/4, Demani Road, Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Daman and Diu on May 14, 2021, the Company suffered
loss of Plant & Machinery, Building and stock having their Gross Cost in the books amounting to % 3.83 Million, %0.86 Million and 37.22 Million respectively. The Company is in the process of
claiming reimbursement of these costs from its insurance arrangements. It is as yet too early to quantify the total reimbursement to be paid to the Company,

57 Events occuring after the balance sheet date and before signing of these financial statements
After the balance sheet date but before adoption of restated financial information by Board, Search under Income Tax Act, 1962 was conducted from November 18, 2021 to Navember 21,

2021 on the Company and its related parties and on Directors. No declaration has been given in such Search conducted. Since there is no declaration and its an event occuring after the
reporting period, the same stands to be non-adjusting events in accordance with Ind A5-10, Events occuring after the reporting period.
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